
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 

on Monday, 29 July 2019, at 11.00 a.m., or on the rising of the 
previous Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee meeting, 

whichever is the later, 

in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, 
Kendal 

 
 
 
 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Alvin Finch 

Hazel Hodgson 

David Webster 

 

Andrew Jarvis (Substitute) 

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Thursday, 18 July 2019 
 
David Sykes, Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources (Interim Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
For all Licensing enquiries, please contact:-  

Licensing Officer:  Tony Houlihan 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting.  

2  APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any, and to report any arising changes to 
membership. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  INTRODUCTIONS   

 The Chairman will make introductions and read out the procedure for the 
meeting. 

 

6  APPLICATION TO RENEW HACKNEY CARRIAGE LICENCE CONTRARY TO 
VEHICLE AGE LIMIT POLICY (CTTEE REF: LR03-19/20)  

3 - 28 

 To consider an application to renew a Hackney Carriage Licence contrary to the 
Vehicle Age Limit Policy. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee 

Monday, 29 July 2019 

Application to Renew Hackney Carriage Licence 
contrary to Vehicle Age Limit Policy 

(Cttee Ref: LR03-19/20) 

 

Portfolio:   Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Tony Houlihan – Licensing Officer 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 An application has been received from Mrs Joan Darling, a hackney carriage 
proprietor, to renew the hackney carriage licence that was issued to her VW Passat 
motor car. The previous licence expired on 19 May 2019. This, if granted, would require 
the Council to dispense with the current vehicle age limit policy, in this instance if 
deemed appropriate, as the vehicle in question is more than ten years old and is not a 
wheelchair accessible vehicle. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that members: 
 

(1) Determine the application and, if approved, allow the applicant’s 
vehicle to be licensed as a hackney carriage vehicle. The Council may 
attach to the grant of a licence such conditions as it may consider 
reasonably necessary; and  
 

(2) Subject to this application being approved, the applicant shall abide 
by all other approved conditions 

 
3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 Hackney carriage HCV352, is a VW Passat motor car; 
a) Its registered number is PK58WNH; 
b) It was first registered in January 2009; 
c) It has covered not less than 130,874 miles since its date of first registration; 
d) It has been licensed as a hackney carriage since November 2013; 
e) It is not a wheelchair accessible vehicle; 
f) During its life as a hackney carriage, it has been MOT tested on 16  

occasions; 
h) It failed the MOT test on three occasions: 
 

Page 3

Item No.6



12/05/15 - Nearside Windscreen wiper does not clear the windscreen 
effectively (8.2.2) 
05/01/18 - Nearside Headlamp aim beam image obviously incorrect 
(1.8.A.1b) 
 
13/09/18 - Do not drive until repaired (dangerous defects): 

Nearside Rear Tyre tread depth below requirements of 1.6mm 
(5.2.3 (e))  

 

3.2  The vehicle was last tested on 08/05/19 and two advisory defects were recorded: 

Nearside Front Suspension arm pin or bush worn but not resulting in 
excessive movement (5.3.4 (a) (i)) 

Offside Front Suspension arm pin or bush worn but not resulting in 
excessive movement (5.3.4 (a) (i)) 

3.3 The vehicle was also subjected to a hackney carriage inspection on 08/05/19. The 
inspection showed that the vehicle complied with the requirements of the Council.  

 
3.4 Mrs Darling submitted this application to re-licence her vehicle before the licence 

expired on 19 May 2019. The vehicle was not eligible for re-licensing on that date, as 
it was more than ten years old. 

 

3.5 The age restriction policy was adopted on 29 January 2009 and is included in the 
current taxi policy document at section 3.5 which is replicated in Appendix 1. The 
relevant extract is shown below: 

 
3.5 Maximum age of vehicle: 

1) No Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle, other than 
wheelchair accessible vehicles, will be re-licensed after reaching 10 
years old; 

  
The vehicle age limit policy can be viewed in full in Appendix 1 of this report. 
 

3.6 The age restriction policy was adopted to ensure that hackney carriages and private 
hire vehicles met modern safety requirements and provided the travelling public with 
reasonably up-to-date vehicles. One of the unintended consequences of the policy 
was that it also ensured the vehicle fleet complied with the most recent vehicle 
emissions requirements. This is particularly important, as it manages, as far as 
practicable, the emission of noxious fumes and diesel particulates in the District. The 
current EU emissions standards for passenger cars were updated in September 2014 
(Euro 6), September 2011 (Euro 5b) and September 2009 (Euro 5a). The standard 
set in Euro 5b contains maximum particulate emissions for the first time. Although the 
limits were set on the dates outlined above, a transition period was allowed in most 
cases to permit manufacturers to clear their old stock. For example Euro 5b only 
came into force for nearly all new vehicles in January 2011. 

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The applicant has supplied a copy of an engineer’s report. The report examines those 
parts of the vehicle that are not otherwise covered by the MOT testing regime. A copy 
of the report can be found in Appendix 2. 

Page 4



4.2 The applicant has also supplied a written explanation of the reasons behind her 
request. The salient point of her letter is that she proposes to retire from hackney 
carriage driving in the next 12 months. A full copy of Mrs Darling’s letter can be viewed 
in Appendix 3. 

 

The district council shall not grant such a licence unless they are satisfied— 
(a) that the vehicle is— 

(i) suitable in type, size and design for use as a private hire vehicle; 
(ii) not of such design and appearance as to lead any person to believe that 
the vehicle is a hackney carriage; 
(iii) in a suitable mechanical condition; 
(iv) safe; and 
(v) comfortable; 

And may attach to the grant of a licence under this section such conditions as they 
may consider reasonably necessary including, without prejudice to the generality of 
the foregoing provisions of this subsection, conditions requiring or prohibiting the 
display of signs on or from the vehicle to which the licence relates. 

 
5.2  If the Council does not grant the application, or places additional conditions on the 

licence, the applicant may appeal against the decision of the Council, if he is aggrieved 
by the refusal to grant a vehicle licence under this section, or by any conditions 
specified in such a licence. The appeal must be made to the magistrates’ court not 
later than 21 days after the applicant was served with written notification of the decision 
of the Council. 

 
6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The purpose of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing system is to protect 
the safety and welfare of the travelling public and therefore links to the council priority 
of Health and Wellbeing.  

 
7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The are no financial implications. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no human resource implications. 

Legal 

7.3.1  Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1988 provides that everyone is entitled to a fair 
hearing. Accordingly an applicant should be afforded the right to a hearing before any 
decision is taken on his application. The applicant has been invited to attend to make 
representations to the Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee. 

 
7.3.2  R v Hyndburn Borough Council in the High Court in 1992, ruled that it is possible in 

law to have a policy of strict age limits provided that it is not an immutable policy. The 
opportunity to depart from a policy must still be afforded if circumstances warrant it and 
each application must still be treated on its merits. In the event of an application for a 
private hire vehicle or hackney carriage being refused on the basis of the age limit 
policy, the applicant would have a right of appeal to the Magistrates’ Court 

 
7.3.3  Section 47 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 states: 
 

Page 5



(1) A district council may attach to the grant of a licence of a hackney carriage 
under the Act of 1847 such conditions as the district council may consider 
reasonably necessary. 

 
(2) Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing subsection, a district 
council may require any hackney carriage licensed by them under the Act of 
1847 to be of such design or appearance or bear such distinguishing marks as 
shall clearly identify it as a hackney carriage. 
 
(3) Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to such a licence may 
appeal to a magistrates’ court. 

 
7.3.4  The applicant may appeal against the decision of the Council if he is aggrieved by 

the decision. The appeal process is explained in section 5.2 above. 
 
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4  Have you completed an Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? / No 

 
7.5  If you have not completed If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please 

explain your reasons: This process and the current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Licensing Policy 2018 have been subjected to an equality impact analysis and no 
issues were found. 

 
Equality and Diversity 
 

7.7  Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 
 
7.8 Risk 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Should members grant the 
application, the operator may 
use a sub-standard hackney 

carriage. 

Members of the public will 
be put at risk of injury or 
death if a sub-standard 
hackney carriage is re-

licensed. 

Members need to be 
satisfied that the vehicle to 
be licensed is maintained 
in a safe and roadworthy 

condition, and will 
continue to be maintained 

in that manner 

Should members refuse the 
application, or grant it with 

conditions, the applicant has a 
right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court. 

If the appeal is allowed, 
costs may be granted 
against the Council 

Members to be aware of 
the right to appeal. 

 

Contact Officers 

Tony Houlihan. Licensing Officer. 01539 793405 t.houlihan@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Page 6

mailto:t.houlihan@southlakeland.gov.uk


 

 

Appendices Attached to this Report 

 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Policy – Vehicle Age Limits 

2 Engineer’s report 

3 Letter from Mrs Darling 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Human Rights Act 1998 Human Rights Act 1998 - Schedule 1 - Article 6 

Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 

Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 26/06/19 

Section 151 Officer 26/06/19 

Monitoring Officer 26/06/19 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director N/A 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 7

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/schedule/1
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1976/57/contents


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Appendix 1 

Extract from Taxi Licensing Policy 

Vehicle Age Limits 

3.5 Maximum age of vehicle 

1) All vehicles, other than wheelchair accessible vehicles, must be less than 5 years old
when first licensed as a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle;

2) No Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle, other than wheelchair accessible vehicles,
will be re-licensed after reaching 10 years old;

3) All vehicles that are wheelchair accessible vehicles must be less than 7 years old when
first licensed as a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle;

4) No wheelchair accessible Hackney Carriage or Private Hire vehicle will be re- licensed
after reaching 14 years old;

5) Any vehicle may be licensed or relicensed outside of these age limits, but any such an
application must be referred to a Licensing Regulatory Sub-Committee for consideration

Appendix 1

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 2

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28


	Agenda
	6 Application to Renew Hackney Carriage Licence contrary to Vehicle Age Limit Policy (Cttee Ref: LR03-19/20)
	Application to Renew Hackney Carriage Licence contrary to Vehicle Age Limit Policy  - Appendix 1
	Application to Renew Hackney Carriage Licence contrary to Vehicle Age Limit Policy  - Appendix 2
	Application to Renew Hackney Carriage Licence contrary to Vehicle Age Limit Policy  - Appendix 3




